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· This is an example of play for SSS based on a solitaire run through of the July 1 Scenario.

· It is an actual game test, die rolls and all. So, not everything that can happen in the recorded turns, does happen. however, it will give novice players a feel for the routine mechanics. thereafter, the joys of SSS will unfold with further play.

· There may be mistakes. so, if something in the examples seems to conflict with the rules, check it, but don’t fall off your horse. Mistakes are a fact of life and games. For example, I remember being in awe of all ASL players until I read the example of play featured in the General many years ago. It showed, even the best players playing the most comprehensively provided for rules system, made mistakes. It’s not deliberate, and it’s not the end of the world.

· It’s not intended to be an example of best play; indeed some actions are definitely not. This was done to illustrate certain rules rather than worry about winning. That, IMHO, is one of the many joys of gaming, especially solitaire gaming.

· OK, let’s go!




Game set up

The game turn marker (any suitable blank as none is provided!) is put on the 7.00 am space on the game turn track. There’s no need to mark the day as the scenario does not continue into July 2.

USA set up 

Note that in terms of rule 14.1 bullet point 2 in the Scenario Book, where more than one unit is listed to start in the same hex (eg Gamble A and B) they may be put in the listed hex or any adjacent hex. Note also that Rowley is the replacement leader for 1/I and is on the reverse side of the Doubleday counter.

Unit
hex

Reynolds
B1721

Buford
A3518

Gamble A
A2532

Gamble B
A2432

Gamble C
A3122

Gamble D
A3023

Devin A
A1923

Devin B
A1613

Devin C
A1904

Tidball A
A3122

Wadsworth
B4031

Cutler A
B4031

Cutler B
B4131

Cutler C
B4232

Meredith A
B4332

Merdeith B
B4433

Meredith C
B4533

Wainright A
B4634

Rowley
B4052

Rowley A
B4052

Rowley B
B4152

Stone A
B4252

Stone B
B4351

The USA starting Army Morale is 22. This is recorded by circling the 22 box (or the one that would be 22 if they were all labelled) on the Army Morale Status sheet for the USA. Reynolds is a Wing Commander and so does not add to army morale.

CSA setup

Unit
hex

Heth
A1843

Davis A
A1940

Davis B
A1841

Peagram B
A1842

Peagram C
A1843

Archer A
A2135

Archer B
A2336

Peagram A
A2236

The CSA starting Army Morale is 8. This is recorded by circling the 8 box on the Army Morale Status sheet for the CSA.

7.00 am turn Start of game turn 1

A          Administrative Phase
1 Leader Segment

There are no leader casualties being replaced and there are no inactive leaders. So, nothing happens in this segment.

2 Army Command Point Segment

The CSA does not have an army leader so skips this segment. The USA has Reynolds as wing (and acting army) commander. The USA player rolls 2d10 and gets 6. He adds 4 (Reynolds command rating) for a final total of 10. On the Command Points Table this produces 2 ACP. The USA player puts the AoP ACP marker on the 2 space on the Command Point Track. Note that this marker is truly for Meade. But Reynolds can use it just now. When Meade shows up the USA player will need to use another blank marker for Reynolds ACP.

3 ACP Adjustment Segment

There are no ACP adjustments.

4 Corps Command Point Segment

The CSA player has no corps commander but does have Heth who acts as an independent leader until Hill arrives and puts him under command control. (14.4 (1) in the Scenario Book.) The CSA player rolls for Heth’s CCP. He rolls 10, adds Heth’s rating of 2 for a final total of 12. Heth gets 2 CCP. To mark this the CSA player uses one of the spare Heth DAC. He puts it on the 2 space on the Command Point Track.

The USA player makes no roll for I Corps because the leader is not on the map. However, he rolls for Buford. He rolls 18, adds Buford’s rating of 4 for a final total of 22. Buford gets 6 CCP. To mark this the USA player uses one of the spare Buford DAC. He puts it on the 6 space on the Command Point Track.

Note that Reynolds could not spend any ACP to help Buford. The scenario restrictions (15.1.2 in the Scenario Book) mean he must, first, move to and end the turn stacked with Buford. So he is not much use on this first turn!

5 CCP Adjustment Segment

There is no CCP adjustment. The I Corps have no CCP to adjust!

6 Orders Segment

The CSA player gives Heth 1 impulse of Direct Command orders. He does this by putting the 2/III (Heth) DAC (not the one on the Command Point Track!) in the single impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 1 CCP. The CSA player moves the other 2/III (Heth) DAC from the 2 to the 1 space on the Command Point Track.

The CSA player chooses Direct Command orders because it gives a slight boost to the likely movement of his division. He would like to give Heth 2 impulses but does not have enough CCP.

The USA player gives Wadsworth and Rowley General orders. He does this by putting the 1/I and the 3/I (marked ‘Doubleday’) DAC in the single impulse box on the General orders row of the orders card. There is no CCP cost. The USA player gives Buford 2 impulses of Direct Command orders. He does this by putting the 1/C DAC (not the one on the Command Point Track!) in the double impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 3 CCP. The USA player moves the other 1/C (Buford) DAC from the 6 to the 3 space on the Command Point Track.

7 Preplanning Segment

None.

8 Initiative Segment

Reynolds cannot spend any ACP so initiative is a straight die roll contest. The CSA rolls 6, the USA rolls 5 and so the CSA wins the initiative. The Initiative marker is put on the Orders Card with the CSA flag side face up.

B          Action Phase
1 Massed Bombardment Segment

None.

2 Action Impulse Segment

The CSA player, having won the initiative, goes first. He decides to activate Heth.

Adjust Orders. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC from the single impulse to the implemented box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The CSA player makes sure Heth’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The CSA player decides to spend 1 CCP on his movement roll. The 1/III DAC on the Command Point Track is moved from the 1 to the 0 space. The CSA player rolls (2d10) and gets 7. He adds 2 for Heth’s command rating and 2 for the 1 CCP spent for a final total of 11. This gives a movement result of 6/9/12. 6 MP for infantry and artillery, 9 for cavalry and 12 for the leader. The 1 CCP expenditure was fortuitous. Without it the result would have been a less favourable 4/6/8. 

First Artillery Fire. The CSA player decides not to fire any artillery at this time. Only Pegram A could fire and the CSA player declines.

Movement. The CSA player moves Archer B from 2336 to 2436 (1 MP) to 2435 (2 MP) to 2434 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 5 MP. The clear spaces cost 2 MP because the enemy ZOI add 1 MP. Archer B does not have enough MP to enter 2433 or 2533. These hexes would cost 3 MP and he only has 1 MP left. Note that if he had 2 MP left he could enter because of the effects of rule [26.23]. Note also that Archer B cannot use road movement in a ZOI.

The CSA player moves Archer A from 2135 to 2134 (1 MP using the trail) to 2133 (2 MP) to 2233 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 5 MP.

The CSA player moves Pegram A from 2236 to 2235 (1/2 MP) to 2334 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 2½ MP. Because this is not more than half the MP the artillery unit will be able to fire in the impulse.

The CSA player moves Davis A from 1940 along the road to 2236 (3 MP) to 2335 (1 MP) and 2435 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 6 MP. Note the ZOI does reach 2435. The CSA player moves Davis B from 1841 along the road to 2235 (4 MP)  to 2335 (1 MP) to 2436 (1 MP) and stops. He has used 6 MP. The CSA player moves Pegram B from 1842 along the road to 2235 (4½ MP) to 2334 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 6½ MP. However, he is allowed to move into the last hex because of rule [26.23]. Pegram B is flipped to its committed side because it used more than half its MP.

The CSA player moves Pegram C from 1843 to 1842 (1 MP) and then along the road to 2236 (4 MP) to 2335 (1 MP) and stops. He has used 6 MP. Pegram C is flipped to its committed side.

Lastly, the CSA player moves Heth from 1843 to 1842 (1 MP) and then along the road to 2235 (4½ MP) to 2334 ( 2 MP) and stops. He has used 7½ MP.

Second Artillery Fire. The CSA player declares a bombardment by Pegram A against hex 2432 occupied by Gamble B. The fire is at normal range. The firing strength is 7 against the basic 4 defence strength for the hex gives odds of 1.5:1, a basic combat DRM of +1. There is another +1 because Heth is stacked with the firing unit. There are no other DRM. The CSA player rolls 16 (double 8), adds 2 for the DRM for a final total of 18. Gamble B takes 1 CH which the USA player marks off on the sheet. Gamble B also has to take a morale check. For this the USA player rolls 7, adds 6 (Gamble B’s morale rating) and 1 (it has Gamble A in support) and subtracts 1 (CH from the bombardment) and 2 (as it is in a ZOI) for a final total of 11. Gamble B is shaken. The USA player decides not to retreat him. He puts a shaken marker on top of Gamble B. Pegram A is flipped to his committed side. However, because he rolled doubles he must take an ammo depletion check. The CSA player rolls 4 so Pegram A takes 1 CH which the CSA player marks off on the sheet.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The CSA player does not need to check divisional morale. Nothing has affected CSA army morale.

The USA player has to check divisional morale for Buford because of the CH taken in bombardment. He rolls 6..oh, oh..and adds 4 (Buford’s command rating) and 1 (no units are in ZOC but they are in ZOI) and subtracts 1 (shaken unit) for a final total of 10. No effect. Nothing has affected USA army morale.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Heth’s impulse. Now it is the USA player’s turn. The USA player decides to use his first action impulse to move Reynolds. This costs 1 ACP. The USA player moves the ACP marker from the 2 to the 1 space on the Command Point Track. Reynolds is active so has 16 MP. The USA player moves him from B1721 along the road to A4213 (8 MP) to 3613 (3 MP) to A3417 (2½ MP) to A3518 (2 MP) and stops. He has used 15½  MP and is stacked with Buford. The impulse ends.

The CSA player has no other divisions to activate and must pass. Play passes back to the USA player.

The USA player activates Buford.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/C DAC from the double to the single impulse box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player makes sure Buford’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The USA player decides not to spend CCP on his movement roll. The USA player rolls 9 and adds 4 for Buford’s command rating for a total of 13. This gives a movement result of 6/9/12. 

First Artillery Fire. The USA player decides not to fire any artillery at this time. 

Movement. The USA player moves Gamble B from A2432 to 2531 (2 MP because of the artillery ZOI) to 2530 (2 MP) where it stops. It has used 4 MP. It is still shaken. The USA player moves Gamble A from A2532 to 2632 (2 MP) to 2631 (2 MP) where it stops. It has used 4 MP. The USA player moves Gamble D from A3023 along the road to 2827 (2½ MP) and then along the road to 2626 (1 MP) where it stops. It has used 3½ MP. The USA player moves Tidball A from A3122 along the road to 2827 (3 MP) and then to 2726 (½ MP) where it stops. It has used 3½ MP. It remains uncommitted because it has not used more than half its MP. The USA player moves Gamble C from A3122 along the road to 2827 (3 MP) and then to 2726 (1 MP because it cannot stack while using road movement) where it stops stacked with Tidball A. The order of units in the stack does not matter. However, it makes sense to have the artillery unit on the top as a reminder because of its longer range ZOI. Gamble C has used 4 MP. The USA player moves Devin A from A1923 (where it is within command range of Buford) along the road to 2325 (2 MP) where its stops. The USA player moves Devin B from A1613 (where it is within command range of Buford) along the road to 1710 (1½ MP) and then to A 2512 (4 MP) where it stops. It has used 5½ MP. The USA player moves Devin C from A1904 along the road to A3110 (6 MP) where it stops.

Second Artillery Fire. none.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The USA player does not need to check divisional morale. Nothing has affected his army morale either.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Buford’s impulse.

As before, the CSA player has no other divisions to activate and must pass. Play passes back again to the USA player who decides to activate Rowley’s Division.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 3/I DAC from the unimplemented to the implemented box on the General orders row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player has no artillery to worry about with this division!

Movement Roll. The USA player has no CCP to spend. If Reynolds were in command range he could not spend ACP because of the special scenario instructions. The USA player rolls 5 and adds Rowley’s command rating of 2 for a final total of 7. Nearly inactive! The result is 4/6/8.

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The USA player moves Rowley and Rowley A along the road from B4052 to B3447. The others follow: Rowley B from B4152 to B3547, Stone A from B4252 to B3548 and Stone B from B4351 to B3649. All have used 4 MP. Rowley himself could have moved further as he has 8 MP but the USA player decides not to separate the leader from the troops. Note that the troops pay ½ for the road hex. They cannot benefit from the lower 1/3 MP cost because they do not have March orders.

Second Artillery Fire. None.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. None.

Adjust Orders. None.

The USA player takes his next impulse with the CSA player still forced to pass. The USA player activates Wadsworth’s division.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/I DAC from the unimplemented to the implemented box on the General orders row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player checks that the artillery are uncommitted.

Movement Roll. The USA player has no CCP to spend. The USA player rolls 10 and adds Wadsworth’s command rating of 3 for a final total of 13. The result is 6/9/12.

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The USA player moves Wadsworth and Cutler A along the road from B4031 to B2924. The others follow: Cutler B from B4131 to B3025, Cutler C from B4232 to B3125, Meredith A from B4332 to B 3226, Meredith B from B4433 to B 3326, Meredith C from B4533 to B 3427 and Wainwright A from B 4634 to B 3527. Wainwright is now committed because he used more than half his MP. All have used 6 MP. 

Second Artillery Fire. None.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. None.

Adjust Orders. None.

The CSA player has to pass again leaving the USA player to take another impulse. He activates Buford.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1C DAC from the single impulse Direct Command box to the implemented box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player checks that the artillery are uncommitted.

Movement Roll. The USA player decides not to spend CCP. The USA player rolls 12 and adds Buford’s command rating of 4 for a final total of 16. The result is 8/12/16.

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The USA player decides not to move any of Buford’s units. 

Second Artillery Fire. None.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. None.

Adjust Orders. None.

Both players now must pass in succession. The Action Impulse ends.

3 Operational Movement Impulse Segment

There are no divisions with March orders and no arriving reinforcements. This segment is passed over.

C          Game Turn End Phase
1 Cohesion Recovery Segment

Neither side has units with R&R recovery or Rally orders. This segment is passed over.

2 Morale Adjustment Segment

Only the USA player has any disrupted units to deal with here: the shaken Gamble B. Because he is not in a ZOC or ZOI he automatically recovers from shaken. The marker is removed.

Both sides flip all artillery units to their uncommitted side.

3 Degradation Segment

Reynolds loses his 1 remaining ACP. The AoP marker is put on the 0 space on the Command Point Track. Buford has 3 CCP which degrade to 2 CCP. The 1/C marker is moved to the 2 space on the Command Point Track.

4 Weather Segment

Nothing happens.

5 Construction Segment

Nothing happens.

6 Game Turn Marker Segment

The game turn marker is moved to the 8.00 am turn.

8.00 am turn

A          Administrative Phase
1 Leader Segment

No action.

2 Army Command Point Segment

The CSA still does not have an army leader so skips this segment. The USA has Reynolds. The USA player rolls 2d10 and gets 9. He adds 4 (Reynolds command rating) for a final total of 13. On the Command Points Table this produces 3 ACP. The USA player puts the AoP ACP marker on the 3 space on the Command Point Track. 

3 ACP Adjustment Segment

None.

4 Corps Command Point Segment

The CSA player still has no corps commander but does have Heth who is still independent. The CSA player rolls for Heth’s CCP. He rolls 12, adds Heth’s rating of 2 for a final total of 14. Heth gets 3 CCP. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC on the Command Point Track to the 3 space.

The USA player still makes no roll for I Corps. Before he rolls for Buford he declares that Reynolds will spend all 3 ACP in improving Buford’s roll. The USA player moves the AoP marker to the 0 space on the Command Point Track. He rolls 9, adds Buford’s rating of 4 and 6 for the ACP spent for a final total of 19. Buford gets 5 CCP. He already has 2 CCP so the USA player moves the Buford DAC on the Command Point Table from the 2 to the 7 space.

5 CCP Adjustment Segment

None.

6 Orders Segment

The CSA player gives Heth 2 impulses of Direct Command orders. He does this by putting the 2/III (Heth) DAC in the double impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 1 CCP. The CSA player moves the other 2/III (Heth) DAC from the 3 to the 0 space on the Command Point Track.

The USA player gives Wadsworth and Rowley General orders. With 0 CCP he does not have much choice. Reynolds is too far away to spend ACP on either of them. The USA player puts both 1/I and 3/I DAC in the single impulse box on the General orders row of the orders card. There is no CCP cost. The USA player gives Buford 2 impulses of Direct Command orders. He puts the 1/C DAC in the double impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 3 CCP. The USA player moves the other 1/C (Buford) DAC from the 7 to the 4 space on the Command Point Track.

7 Preplanning Segment

None.

8 Initiative Segment

Reynolds has no ACP to spend so initiative is a straight die roll contest. The CSA rolls 10, the USA rolls 7 and so the CSA wins the initiative. The Initiative marker stays on the Orders Card with the CSA flag side face up.

B          Action Phase
1 Massed Bombardment Segment

None.

2 Action Impulse Segment

The CSA player, having won the initiative, goes first. He activates Heth.

Adjust Orders. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC from the double impulse to the single impulse box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The CSA player makes sure Heth’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The CSA player has no CCP to spend on his movement roll. The CSA player rolls 9 and adds 2 for the command rating for a final total of 11. This gives a movement result of 6/9/12.  

First Artillery Fire. The CSA player decides not to fire any artillery at this time.

Movement. The CSA player moves Archer A from A2233  to 2332 (2 MP) to 2432  (2 MP) and stops in A2531 (3 MP). He has used 7 MP. He is able to move into the last hex, even though he only had 2 MP left because that was at least half the MP cost. The USA units Gamble A and Gamble B now have no ZOI. [24.32]. 

The CSA player moves Archer B from A2434 to 2433 (1 MP) to 2432 (1 MP) to 2331 (1 MP) to 2330 (1 MP) to A2430 (4 MP, 2 for the ZOC, 1 for the clear hex and 1 for going up a minor slope) and stops there. He has used 8 MP and again is able to move into the last hex because he had 2 MP left and this was at least half the 4 MP cost. The CSA player moves Davis A from A2435 to 2534 (1 MP) to 2634 (1 MP) to 2733 (1 MP) to 2732 (1 MP) to A2731 (3 MP) and stops. He has used 7 MP again benefiting from [26.23]. The CSA player moves Davis B from A2436 to 2435 (1 MP) to 2434 (1 MP) to 2433 (1 MP) to A2432 and stops.  The CSA player moves Pegram A from A2334 along the road to 2433 (1 MP) and ends stacked in A 2432 (1 MP). He has used 2 MP. Because this is not more than half the MP the artillery unit will be able to fire in the impulse. The CSA player moves Pegram B from A2334 along the road to 2433 (1 MP) and also ends stacked in A 2432 (1 MP). He has used 2 MP. Again, because this is not more than half the MP the artillery unit will be able to fire in the impulse. The CSA player moves Heth from A2434 along the road to 2433 (1 MP) and also ends stacked in A 2432 (1 MP). He has used 2 MP. Lastly, the CSA player moves Pegram C from A2335 to 2334 (1 MP) then along the road to 2433 (1 MP) and then to A2532 (1 MP) where he stops. He remains uncommitted.

Second Artillery Fire. The CSA player declares a bombardment by Pegram A and Pegram B against hex 2530 occupied by Gamble B. The fire is at normal range. Note there is a line of sight. For the LOS to be blocked there would need to be blocking terrain or a unit in A2431 as well. The firing strength is 14 against the basic 4 defence strength for the hex gives odds of 3:1, a basic combat DRM of +3. There is another +1 because Heth is stacked with the firing unit. There is a –2 DRM for the woods in the target hex a final DRM of +2.

The CSA player rolls 15 adds 2 for the DRM for a final total of 17. Gamble B takes 1 CH which the USA player marks off on the sheet. (He now has 2 CH.) Gamble B also has to take a morale check. For this the USA player rolls 14, adds 6 (Gamble B’s morale rating) and 2 (inverse of the woods terrain DRM) and 1 (it has Gamble A in support) and subtracts 1 (CH from the bombardment) and 3 (as it is in a ZOC) for a final total of 19. No effect.

Pegram A and Pegram B are flipped to their committed side. 

Ground Combat. The attacking player decides the order in which combats must be resolved. [27.12] The CSA player decides to resolve the attack against Gamble A in hex A2631 first. At this point the USA player has a decision to make: should he withdraw Gamble A? See [27.31]. The USA player decides to withdraw Gamble A to A2928. Not a good choice; no helpful terrain or supporting unit DRM for the coming morale check. The CSA player follows up by moving Davis A from A2731 to A2631. Gamble A has to take a morale check. The USA player rolls 8 and adds 6 (the unit’s morale rating) for a final total of 14.  Gamble A is shaken and is marked accordingly. Gamble A could retreat again – because of the morale check result - and the USA player decides to do so, moving him to A2827.

The CSA player now wants to resolve the combat against Gamble B in hex A2530. Again, the USA player has to decide whether or not to withdraw. He decides to withdraw Gamble B and moves him from A 2530 to 2529 to 2528 to 2527 and stops at A2526. The CSA player follows up by moving Archer A from A2531 to A2530. Gamble B moved through a ZOC while withdrawing (A2529) so the USA player has to mark another 2 CH against it; it now has 4 CH. The unit also has to take a morale check. The USA player rolls 9 and adds 6 (the unit’s morale rating) and adds 1 for the direct support given by Gamble D in A2626 for a final total of 16.  No effect. This ends the combat.

Adjust Morale. The CSA player does not need to check divisional morale because he did not attack; the enemy withdrew before combat. Nothing has affected CSA army morale.

The USA player has to check divisional morale for Buford because of the CH taken in bombardment. Otherwise he would not have had to check because his units retreated before combat. The USA player rolls 18 adds 4 (Buford’s command rating) and 3 (no units are in ZOC or ZOI) and subtracts 1 (shaken unit) for a final total of 24. No effect. Nothing has affected USA army morale.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Heth’s impulse.

Now it is the USA player’s turn.

The USA player decides to use his first action impulse to activate Buford and try and get Gamble A and B out of harm’s way.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/C DAC from the double to the single impulse box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player makes sure Buford’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The USA player decides not to spend CCP on his movement roll. The USA player rolls 10 and adding 4 for the command rating gets 14. This gives a movement result of 8/12/16. 

First Artillery Fire. None. 

Movement. The USA player moves Gamble B from A2526 to 2525 (1 MP) to 2625 (1 MP) to 2624 (1 MP) to 2723 (1 MP) to 2823  (1 MP) to 2822 (1 MP) to A2921 (2 MP) where it stops. 

The USA player moves Gamble A from A2827 along the road to 3122 (3 MP) to A3223 (2 MP) where it stops, still shaken. The USA player moves Tidball A from A2726 along the road to A 2927 (1 MP) and then stops. It remains uncommitted because it has not used more than half its MP. The USA player moves Gamble C from A2726 along the road to 2827 (½ MP) and then to 2927 (1 MP) where it stops stacked with Tidball A. The USA player does not move the other units in Buford’s division.

Second Artillery Fire. none.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The USA player does not need to check divisional morale. Nothing has affected his army morale either.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Buford’s impulse.

The CSA player gets the next action impulse and activates Heth.

Adjust Orders. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC from the single impulse to the implemented box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The CSA player flips all Heth’s artillery units to their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The CSA player rolls 11 and adds 2 for the command rating for a final total of 13. This gives a movement result of 6/9/12. Not what the CSA player wanted.  

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The CSA player moves Archer A from A2530 to 2529 (2 MP because of the USA artillery ZOI) to A2528 (2 MP) where it stops.

The CSA player moves Archer B from A2430 to 2429 (1 MP) to A 2428 (2 MP) where it stops.

The CSA player moves Davis A from A2631 to 2630 (2 MP) to A2629 (2 MP) where the USA player interrupts and declares an opportunity fire [31.5] by Tidball in A2927 against Davis A.

The fire is at normal range. The firing strength is 7 against the basic 4 defence strength for the hex gives odds of 1.5:1, a basic combat DRM of +1. There are no other DRM. The USA player rolls 16 (9+7) and adds 1 for the DRM for a final total of 17. Davis A takes 1 CH which the CSA player marks off on the sheet. Davis A also has to take a morale check. For this the CSA player rolls 10 and adds 3 (morale rating) and subtracts 1 (CH from the bombardment) and 2 (as it is in a ZOI) for a final total of 10. Davis A is shaken. The CSA player decides to retreat him to A2630 and back to good old A2631! (ending his movement even though he had 2 MP left [31.52]) The CSA player puts a shaken marker on top of Davis A. Tidball A is flipped to his committed side. 

Back to movement. The CSA player moves Davis B from A2432 along the road to 2530 (1 MP) and then to 2630 (2 MP) to A2729 (3 MP because of the minor slope) where it stops. The CSA player moves Pegram A from A 2432 along the road to 2530 (1 MP) and then to 2630 (2 MP) to A2629 (2 MP) where it stops. It has spent more than half its MP so the CSA player flips it to the committed side. The CSA player moves Pegram B from A 2432 along the road to 2530 (1 MP) and then to 2630 (2 MP) to A2629 (2 MP) where it stacks with Pegram A and stops. It too has spent more than half its MP so the CSA player flips it to the committed side. The CSA player also moves Heth from A2432 along the road to 2530 (1 MP) and then to 2630 (2 MP) to A2629 (2 MP) where he stacks with Pegram A & B and stops. Lastly, the CSA player moves Pegram C from A2532 to 2432 (1 MP) along the road to 2530 (1 MP) to 2630 (2 MP) and to A2731 (4 MP being 1 for clear, 2 for artillery up a minor slope and 1 for ZOI) where it stops. Again, the unit could move into the last hex even though it did not have enough MP because it had half the amount. The CSA player flips Pegram C to his committed side.

Second Artillery Fire. None. The CSA artillery is all committed.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The CSA player checks divisional morale for Heth. He rolls 17, adds 2 for Heth’s command rating, adds 1 for not being in a ZOC and subtracts 1 for the shaken unit for a total of 19 an easy pass. Nothing has affected CSA army morale.

The USA player does not have to check divisional morale for Buford. Nothing has affected USA army morale.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Heth’s impulse.

Play passes back again to the USA player who decides to activate Buford again.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/C DAC from the single impulse to the implemented box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card. The USA player also decides to spend 1 CCP on giving Gamble B rally orders. He moves the Buford DAC from the 4 to the 3 space on the Command Point Track and he puts an Ammo Resupply marker on Gamble B.

Ready Artillery. The USA player flips Tidball A to his uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The USA player decides not to spend CCP on his movement roll. The USA player rolls 7 and adding 4 for the command rating gets 11. This gives a movement result of 6/9/12. 

First Artillery Fire. The USA player uses Tidball A to bombard A2528 where Archer A is. (He decides to avoid the nearer hexes knowing the artillery will be able to counterbattery fire against them.) The fire is at normal range. The firing strength is 7 against the basic 4 defence strength for the hex gives odds of 1.5:1, a basic combat DRM of +1. There are no other DRM. The minor slope has no effect because the firing unit is not lower than the target hex. The USA player rolls 12 (5+7) and adds 1 for the DRM for a final total of 13. Archer A has to take a morale check. For this the CSA player rolls 9 and adds 4 (morale rating) and adds 1 (unit in support) and subtracts 2 (it is in a ZOI) for a final total of 12. Archer A is shaken. The CSA player decides to retreat him to A2429. The CSA player puts a shaken marker on top of Archer A. Tidball A is flipped to his committed side.

Movement. The USA player moves Gamble B from A2921 to A3021 (1 MP) to 3022 91 MP) to A3023 (1 MP) where it stops. The USA player leaves Buford’s other units where they are.

Second Artillery Fire. none.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The USA player does not need to check divisional morale. Nothing has affected his army morale either. The CSA player does not have to check divisional morale for Heth (luckily) because no CH were suffered. His army morale is unaffected, too.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Buford’s impulse.

There are no more CSA divisions to activate so the CSA player must pass.

The USA player decides to activate Rowley, the 3/I division.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 3/I DAC from the unimplemented to the implemented box on the General orders row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. None.

Movement Roll. The USA player rolls 14 and adds Rowley’s command rating of 2 for a final total of 16. Nearly inactive! The result is 8/12/16.

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The USA player moves Rowley and Rowley A along the road from B3447 to B2137. The others follow: Rowley B from B3547 to B2138, Stone A from B3548 to B2239 and Stone B from B3649 to B2240. All have used 8 MP. 

Second Artillery Fire. None.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. None.

Adjust Orders. None.

The USA player takes his next impulse with the CSA player still forced to pass. The USA player activates Wadsworth’s division.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/I DAC from the unimplemented to the implemented box on the General orders row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player checks that the artillery are uncommitted.

Movement Roll. The USA player has no CCP to spend. The USA player rolls 13 and adds Wadsworth’s command rating of 3 for a final total of 16. The result is 8/12/16.

First Artillery Fire. None.

Movement. The USA player moves Wadsworth and Cutler A along the road from B2924 to B1319. The others follow: Cutler B from B3025 to B1420, Cutler C from B3125 to B1520, Meredith A from B 3226 to B1621, Meredith B from B3326 to B1721, Meredith C from B3427 to B 1822 and Wainwright A from B3527 to B1922. Wainwright is now committed because he used more than half his MP. All have used 8 MP. 

Second Artillery Fire. None.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. None.

Adjust Orders. None.

Both players now must pass in succession. The Action Impulse ends.

3 Operational Movement Impulse Segment

The CSA player, having the initiative goes first. He has no on board forces with March orders. He has reinforcements that he now selects. Pettigrew and Brockenbrough’s brigades. Although not a division, they arrive as if they were one. As their division is on board they use lettered DAC [14.43 and 14.44]. The CSA player puts the A marker on the single impulse March orders space on the Orders Card and one with the offboard units. He then moves the  A DAC on the Orders Card to the implemented box on the March orders row. He rolls for movement, getting a 15. There are no modifiers (they have no divisional leader with them) and the result is 6/9/12. The CSA player moves the reinforcements as follows. Pettigrew A enters at A1053 and moves along the road using the 1/3 MP movement rate to A1940 using 6 MP. In accordance with [A14.48] the other units all enter at A1053 and move in a line. Pettigrew B to A1841, Pettigrew C to A1842, Pettigrew D to A1742, Brockenbrough A to A1743 and Brockenbrough B to A1644. The CSA player now removes the A DAC from the units (and the Orders Card) because they are now in Heth’s command range of 8 MP. The impulse ends.

The USA player has no on board forces with March orders and also has to activate reinforcements. The USA player puts the 2/1 DAC on the single impulse March orders space on the Orders Card and then moves it to the implemented box on the March orders row. He rolls for movement, getting a 19 and adds 3 for Robinson’s command rating for a final 22. The result is 12/18/24. They enter at B4935, led off by Doubleday, Robinson and Paul A who move along the road to B2022. They have MP left but the USA player decides it may be more hassle than it is worth trying to move them around Wadsworth’s men, remembering the restrictions on road movement [25.24] and March orders [9.172]. The others follow with Paul B moving to B2122, Wainright B to B2223 (committed), Wainright C to B2323 (committed), Wainright D to B2424 (committed), Baxter A to B2523 and Baxter B to B2624. The USA player also puts the I Corps CCP marker in the 0 space on the Command Point Track.

The Segment ends as neither player has any more units to activate.

C          Game Turn End Phase
1 Cohesion Recovery Segment

The USA player resolves the Rally order for Gamble B by taking a normal morale check. He rolls 13 and adds 6 (unit morale) and 2 (for being up a major hill) for a final total of 21. The USA player removes 1 of Gamble B’s CH so it now has 3. The USA player leaves the Ammo Resupply marker (at no cost) hoping to continue Gamble B’s rally in future turns. The segment now ends.

2 Morale Adjustment Segment

Both players have units to deal with here. The USA player recovers the shaken Gamble A and removes the marker. The CSA player recovers Davis A and Archer A and removes their shaken markers. 

Both sides flip all artillery units to their uncommitted side.

The USA player increases his Army Morale from 22 to 31 to reflect the turn’s reinforcements. The CSA player increases his Army Morale from 8 to 14 to reflect the turn’s reinforcements.

3 Degradation Segment

Buford has 3 CCP which degrade to 2 CCP. The 1/C marker is moved to the 2 space on the Command Point Track.

4 Weather Segment

Nothing happens.

5 Construction Segment

Nothing happens.

6 Game Turn Marker Segment

The game turn marker is moved to the 9.00 am turn.

9.00 am turn

A          Administrative Phase
1 Leader Segment

No action.

2 Army Command Point Segment

The CSA still does not have an army leader so skips this segment. The USA has Reynolds. The USA player rolls 2d10 and gets 12. He adds 4 (Reynolds command rating) for a final total of 16. On the Command Points Table this produces 4 ACP. The USA player puts the AoP ACP marker on the 4 space on the Command Point Track. 

3 ACP Adjustment Segment

None.

4 Corps Command Point Segment

The CSA player still has no corps commander but does have Heth who is still independent. The CSA player rolls for Heth’s CCP. He rolls 6, adds Heth’s rating of 2 for a final total of 8. Heth gets 1 CCP and narrowly avoids becoming inactive. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC on the Command Point Track to the 1 space.

The USA player can now roll for I Corps because Doubleday is on the map. He rolls 11, adds the command rating of 3 for a final score of 14. This gives Doubleday 3 CCP. The USA player puts the I Corps CCP marker on the 3 space on the Command Point Track. [Note that Reynolds could have spent ACP on improving the roll because Doubleday is in command range.] 

For Buford, the USA player rolls 12 and adds Buford’s rating of 4 for a final total of 16. Buford gets 4 CCP. He already has 2 CCP so the USA player moves the Buford DAC on the Command Point Table from the 2 to the 6 space.

5 CCP Adjustment Segment

None. [Note, Rowley is just in command or the I Corps CCP would be adjusted.]

6 Orders Segment

The CSA player gives Heth an impulse of Direct Command orders. He does this by putting the 2/III (Heth) DAC in the single impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 1 CCP. The CSA player moves the other 2/III (Heth) DAC from the 1 to the 0 space on the Command Point Track.

The USA player gives Wadsworth, Rowley and Robinson March orders. This costs 3 CCP. The USA player moves the I Corps CCP marker from the 3 to the 0 space on the Command Point Track. The USA player puts 1/I, 2/I and 3/I DAC in the single impulse box on the March orders row of the orders card. 

The USA player gives Buford 1 impulse of Direct Command orders. He puts the 1/C DAC in the single impulse box on the Direct Command orders row of the Orders Card. This costs 1 CCP. The USA player moves the other 1/C (Buford) DAC from the 6 to the 5 space on the Command Point Track.

7 Preplanning Segment

The USA player, planning ahead, decides to bank some future activity for I Corps. He decides to buy 4 PPP for I Corps for the 12:00 noon game turn. He notes this on a piece of paper (and puts a blank marker on the 12:00 turn to remind him). He also moves the AoP ACP marker from the 4 to the 0 space on the Command Point Track.

8 Initiative Segment

Reynolds has no ACP to spend so initiative is a straight die roll contest. The CSA rolls 8 and the USA rolls 8 and so the CSA wins the initiative although it was a tie because it had the initiative last turn. [11.12] The Initiative marker stays on the Orders Card with the CSA flag side face up.

B          Action Phase
1 Massed Bombardment Segment

None.

2 Action Impulse Segment

The CSA player, having won the initiative, goes first. He activates Heth.

Adjust Orders. The CSA player moves the 2/III DAC from the single impulse box to the implemented box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The CSA player makes sure Heth’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The CSA player has no CCP to spend on his movement roll. The CSA player rolls 7 and adds 2 for the command rating for a final total of 9. This gives a movement result of 4/6/8.  

First Artillery Fire. The CSA player decides to fire Pegram A, B & C against Gamble C and Tidball A in A2927.

The fire is at normal range. The firing strength is 21 against the basic 4 defence strength for the hex gives odds of 5:1, a basic combat DRM of +5. There is another +1 because Heth is stacked with a firing unit. There are no other DRM. The CSA player rolls 13 and adds 6 for the DRM for a final total of 19. Gamble C and Tidball A each take 2 CH which the USA player marks off on the sheet. They also have to take a morale check. For this the USA player rolls 13, adds 7 (Tidball A’s morale rating – the USA player may choose) and subtracts 2 (CH from the bombardment) and 2 (as it is in a ZOI) for a final total of 16. No effect. Pegram A, B & C are flipped to their committed side.

The USA player could counterbattery fire but decides not to. He wants to keep Tidball A uncommitted just in case those pesky rebels try to close on him.

Movement. Pettigrew A moves along road at ½ MP movement rate (they do not have March orders) from  A1940 to A2334 using all 4 MP. The following units move in line with Pettigrew B from A1841 to A2235, Pettigrew C from A1842 to A2236, Pettigrew D from A1742 to A2136,  Brockenbrough A from A1743 to A2137 and Brockenbrough B from A1644 to A2038.  The CSA player moves Archer A from A2429 to A2528 using 3 MP and stops. The CSA player moves Davis A from A2631 through A2730 (2 MP) to A 2830 (2 MP) and stops. The CSA player leaves his other units where they are.

Second Artillery Fire. 

None. 

Ground Combat. 

If only! None.

Adjust Morale. The CSA player does not need to check divisional morale. The USA player has to check Buford’s though because of the bombardment losses. He rolls 6 adds 4 (command rating) and 1 (units in ZOI only) for a final total of 11 which has no effect. Nothing has affected CSA army morale. Nothing has affected USA army morale.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Heth’s impulse.

Now it is the USA player’s turn.

The USA player activates Buford.

Adjust Orders. The USA player moves the 1/C DAC from the single impulse box to the implemented box on the Direct Command row of the Orders Card.

Ready Artillery. The USA player makes sure Buford’s artillery units are on their uncommitted side.

Movement Roll. The USA player decides to spend no CCP on his movement roll. The USA player rolls 11 and adding 4 for the command rating gets 15. This gives a movement result of 8/12/16. 

First Artillery Fire. None. 

Movement. The USA player looks long and hard and then decides not to move any of Buford’s units. He hopes they will hold the line long enough to get I Corps into place. 

Second Artillery Fire. none. The USA player decides the risk of suffering an ammo loss is too great for the possible benefit that might be obtained.

Ground Combat. None.

Adjust Morale. The USA player does not need to check divisional morale. Nothing has affected his army morale either.

Adjust Orders. No adjustment necessary. 

This ends Buford’s impulse.

Both players now must pass in succession. The Action Impulse ends.

3 Operational Movement Impulse Segment

The CSA player, having the initiative goes first. He has no on board forces or reinforcements with March orders and so must pass. 

The USA player has three divisions on board with March orders. He decides to activate 1/I first. The USA player moves the 1/I DAC to the implemented box on the March orders row. He rolls for movement, getting 8 and adds 3 for Wadsworth’s command rating for a final 11. The result is 6/9/12.

Wadsworth and Cutler A move along the road from B1319 to A3613 using 1/3 MP per hex and all 6 MP. The others follow: Cutler B from B1420 to A3713, Cutler C from B1520 to A3813, Meredith A from B1621 to A3913, Meredith B from B1721 to A4013, Meredith C from B1822 to A4113 and Wainwright A from B1922 to A4213 becoming committed.

The CSA player must pass and the USA player activates 2/I. The USA player moves the 2/I DAC to the implemented box on the March orders row. He rolls for movement, getting 5 and adds 3 for Robinson’s command rating for a final 8. The result is 4/6/8.

Doubleday, Robinson and Paul A move along the road from B2022 to B0916. [Note that Doubleday could have used 16 MP but would have to start and end the turn with a 2/I unit. The restriction would not apply if he was moving by spending CCP in an action impulse segment [26.42]]. The others follow with Paul B moving from B2122 to B1017, Wainright B from B2223 to B1117 (committed), Wainright C from B2323 to B1118 (committed), Wainright D from B2424  to B1219 (committed), Baxter A from B2523 to B1319 and Baxter B from B2624 to B1420.

The CSA player must pass and the USA player activates 3/I. The USA player moves the 3/I DAC to the implemented box on the March orders row. He rolls for movement, getting 11 and adds 2 for Rowley’s command rating for a final 13. The result is 6/9/12.

The USA player moves Rowley and Rowley A along the road from B2137 to B1723. The others follow: Rowley B from B2138 to B1724, Stone A from B2239 to B1825 and Stone B from B2240 to B1925 . All have used 6 MP.

The Segment ends as neither player has any more units to activate.

C          Game Turn End Phase
1 Cohesion Recovery Segment

The USA player resolves the Rally order for Gamble B by taking a normal morale check. He rolls 10 and adds 6 (unit morale) and 2 (for being up a major hill)  for a final total of 18. The USA player removes 1 of Gamble B’s CH so it now has 2. The USA player leaves the Ammo Resupply marker (at no cost) hoping to continue Gamble B’s rally in future turns. The segment now ends.

2 Morale Adjustment Segment

Both players have no shaken or broken units to deal with here. 

Both sides flip all artillery units to their uncommitted side.

3 Degradation Segment

Buford has 5 CCP which degrade to 3 CCP. The 1/C marker is moved to the 3 space on the Command Point Track.

4 Weather Segment

Nothing happens.

5 Construction Segment

Nothing happens.

6 Game Turn Marker Segment

The game turn marker is moved to the 10.00 am turn.

And at this point we will break off from our example.

How do things stand? The CSA player is frustrated because Heth has taken his time and achieved very little. Perhaps the CSA player should have used General orders (which are cheaper) or perhaps he was just unlucky. The 10.00 am reinforcements are much needed. The USA player can be content that Buford has done his delaying job well. He would be happier if 1/I were more advanced but reckons, unless Heth’s luck changes, he should have time to set up a solid defensive line on McPherson’s Ridge/the Ripple and McPherson’s Hill. The CSA has much to do, but the tools to do the job are coming down the Cashtown Pike, very soon.

I hope you enjoy SSS. And if this has whetted your appetite, SS has lots of extras to enjoy.
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